S.R. DINODIA & Co. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

K-39 Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001 INDIA
Ph. : +91-(0)11-4370 3300 Fax ; +91-(0)11-4151 3666

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of Sterling Fabory india Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given {o us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management & Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepled in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operatin
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevm
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preparation_ and' presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In prep-aring the ﬁne_:ncial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee
that an audit canducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia! if, individually or in lhe

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulling from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our
auditor's report to the retated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to meodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or condilions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent lhe underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matlers, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to ceammunicale with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Cenlral
Government of indla In terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in ‘Annexure
A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income),

Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Reporl are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinien, the aforesaid financlal statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

f) As per the Company, in view of the MCA notification dated 13 June 2017, the Company is
exempt from the requirements of clause (i) of section 143 (3) of the act and therefore the report
on adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the company
and operative effecliveness of such controls of the Company is not being made.

g) With respect to the other matters fo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Audilors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financia! position.
fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

li. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co, LLLP
Chartered Accountanis,
Firm's Regisiration Number 001478N/N500005

~

(Sandeep Dinodia}
Partner
Membership Number 083689

UDIN: 2003_263 9/4#4/4/9’3:/:75/0_2
Place of Signature: Neas Del i

Date: 12 JUN 2020
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Anne:xure ‘A’ Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial statements of
Sterling Fabory india Private Limited

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under
section of Independent Auditars’ Report to the m
the year ended March 31, 2020, we report that:

i)

i)

Tii

v

vi)

vii)

'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
embers of the Company on the financial slatements for

In respect of fixed assels:

a) The Company has maintained adequale records showing full parliculars including quantitative
details and situalion of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed asseils by which fixed
assle:ls are verified at regular intervals. In accordance with this programme, all fixed assets were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our

opinion, such periodicily of physical verification is reasonable having regard 1o the size of the
Company and the nature of ils assets.

c) Mo immovable properlies are held in the name of the Company, Therefore, the provisions of

clause 3(i)}(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company.

In respect of its inventory:

a} On the basis of information and explanation provided by the management, inventories have
been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion the frequency of
physical verification followed by the managemaent is reasonable.

b} No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the
book records.

(a) to (c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company had not granted
loans, secured or unsecured, to any of the Companies, firms or other parlies covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of

clause 3{iii) (a) to (c) of the Companies {Auditor's Reporl) Order, 2016 are nol apphcable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securily covered under the provisions of section 185 and 186G of the Compamnas
Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Companies (Auditor's Reporl) Order,
2018 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according (o the information and explanation given to us, the Company has nol
accepted any deposils in contravention of any directives issued by lhe Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of seclions 73 lo 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Acl.

On the basis of available informalion and explanation provided to us, the Central Governmenl has
not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Compames
Act, 2013 read wilh Companies (Cosl Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 dated
December 31, 2014 to the current operations carried out by the Company. Accordingly, lhe
provisions of clause 3{vi) of the Companies {Audilor's Report) Order, 2016 are nol applicable lo the
Company.

{(a) The Company is generally requiar in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fung, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales lax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added lax. goods and services lax, cess and any other stalutory dues wath
appropriate authorities. Further there were no undisputed outstanding statutory dues as on the ias!
day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b} According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanalions

excise, value added tax. goods and services tax, and cess that have nol been deposil/?_
account of any dispute. /8
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viil)

ix)

X)

xi}

xii)

Xifi)

xiv)

xv)

xvi)

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial inslilu{ior.\.,_ banks
government or debenlure holders during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3{viii} of the
Order are not applicable.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the
order are not applicable,

According to the informalion and explanations given (o us, no material fraud by the Company or on

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit.

The Company is not a public company; therefore provisions of section 197, w.r.l Managerial

Remuneration, read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company

The Company is not a nidhi company hence the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order is nol
applicable to the Company.

During the caurse of our examination of the books and records of the Company, all transactions
entered with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the Financial Slatements etc, as required by the applicable

accounling standards. Further the provisions of section 177 of the Act are nol applicable to he
Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or

partly convertible debentures during the year under review, Accordingly, the provision of clause
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with direclors or persons connected
with them. Hence, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For 8. R. Dincdia & Co. L.LP,
Chartered Accountants,

Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N500005

(Sandeep Dinodia

{ P

Partner

Membership Number 083689
VOIN: 2 00814 8F AAARLF G407

Place of Sigrature: !)\\—U.u D 204

12 JUN 2020



Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2020

(All amounts In T In takh, oxcept otherwise spocified)

As Al
March 31, 2019

Particulars Notas As At
Mareh 31, 2020
Assols
Non-Currant Assals
(2) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 36.59
{b) Right-of-Usp Assels 4 46.37
(¢} Other Inlangible Assets 5 0.26
(d) Financial Assets
(i} Other Financial Assels 6 5.72
(e) Delerred tax Assels (net) 7 40.44
{0) Cther Non-Current Assels 8 0.66
Total Non-Currant Assets 130,04
Currant Assots
(8} Inventories 1] 182.30
(b) Financial Assets
(it Trade Recelvables . 10 238.85
(i) Cash andg Cash Equivalents 11 109.38
(i) Bank Balances other than () above 12 50.00
iv) Other Financial Assels 6 0.19
{¢) Current Tax Assels {Net) 13 279
(d) Other Current Assats 8 15.03
Total Current Assals £08.55
Total Assots 738.59
Equity And Llabllitios
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 681.00
{b) Other Equity 15 {229.31)
Total Equity 451.69
Linbilltias

Nan-Current Liabilitios
{a} Financial Habillties

(i Otker Financial Liabilities 16 22.37
{b) Prowisions 17 13.90
Totai Non-Currant Liabllitles 36.27

Curront Liabilitios
{a) Financial Liabllitles o
(i} Trade Payables 18
(A) lotal oulstanding dues of micro

enlerprises and small enterprises; and 24.16
{B) total outslanding dues of creditors

olher than micro enterprises 179.72

and small enterprises.

(i} Other Finangial Liabilitles 18 30.56
(b} Olher current Liabilities 19 15.84
{c) Provisions 17 0.35
Total Curront Liahilitios 250.63
Tota!l Liabllitles 286.90

Total Equity And Liabilltles 738.59
SUMmMAry o1 HIGNINCAnT Accounung Hancies £.3

28.04

0.45

5.22
22.83
1.18

SRR -1 N &
283.16

356.43
132.18
154.68
5.52
4.12

8.68
944.76

1,002.48

681.00

{105.82)
L srsa8

12.44
12.44

3.10

38218

17 65

11.93
414.85

427.30

1,002.48

18 accompany:ng noles ang wilagral pad of ke hnancials slalements
AS per our Audit Keport of even date altached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP.
Charlered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

T

(Sandoop Binedia)
Portnar
Membarship Number 083089

Place of Signature, NLLODalid
™12 N

Foroand on behalf of tho Board of Diractors of
Storling Fabory Indla Private Limite

(Aul Aggarwal}

Blructor

gﬁumzﬁnzs




Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Statement Of Profit & Loss For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts In ¥ In lakh, excopt othorwise specificd)

For the yaar ended Far the year
Particulars Notes March 31, 2020 ended
I, Revenue From Qperations 20 1,130,57 1,405.70
1, Other Income 21 13.97 19.58
11, Total Income (| + ) 1,144.54 1,425.28
Iv. Expenses
{a) Cost of Malarials Consumed
(b) Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 22 698.96 1,092.38
{c) Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade "
and Work-In-Progress 2 56.04 (145.50)
(d) Employee Benefils Expense 24 29494 25772
{e) Finance Costs 25 13.44 668
{f) Depreciation and Amoriisation Expense 26 39.54 279
(g) Other Expenses 27 171.02 17375
Total Expensas 1,275.94 1,384.82
V. Profit (Loss) Bofora Exceptional ltoms and Tax {[lI-V) {131.40) 30.4G
Vi Exceptional itoms - -
Vil. Profit/ {Loss) Batore Tax (V-VI) (131.40) 30.46
VIl Tax Expense: a3
Current Tax - .
Defered Tax {11.40) 346
Tax adjustment for earlier years 1.84 0.89
Total Tax Expense {9.55) 4.35
IX. Profil{Loss) For The Year (VII-VIIl} (121.84) 26.11
X. Other Comprehensive Incomo
{A) {i} llems that will not be reclassified to statement of Piofit or Loss
{3) Remeasurement of Defined Beneftt Plans 2.62 1.44
{il) income tax rolating to ltems that will not be reclassifled to
statement of Prolit or Loss (0.68) 037
(B} (i) ltems that will be reclassified statement of Profit or Loss
(ii) Income tax relating to llems that will be reclassifiad lo
statement of Profil or Loss "
Total Other Comprehensive Incoma , Net of Tax 1,94 1.07
XI Total Comprehonsive Income For The Year (X+XI)
Comprising Profit {Loss) and Other comprehensive Income
for the year {119.90) 21.18
Xl Earnings Por Equity Share: (Face Value T 10 Per Shara) 35
1) Basic {amount in 3) (1.79} 0.38
2) Diluted (amount in ) (1.79) 0.8
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.3

Tha accompanying nolos are integral part of the financials statoments
As per our Audit Report of even date altached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accounlanis
Firm's Registration Number: 001478N/N500005

(SandeepiDinodia)

Partnor

Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature. q\\vﬂbeﬂ-ﬁ*
12 JUN 2028

Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Fabory Indlg Private Limited

(Atul Agénl)

IN 00125825




Sterling Fabory India Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts in ¥ In lakh, excopt otherwise spoclfied)

{A} Equity sharo capltal
Opening Balance as at April 01, 2018
Changes during the year
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2019

Changes during the year
Closing Balance as at March 31, 2020

{B) Other Equity

Balanco As Al Aprll 01, 2018

Profil For The Year

Remeasurement of defined benofil pian {net of tax)

Balance As At March 31, 2019

Impacl on account of Ind AS 118 adoplion {refar noto no 35)

Changes In other equity
Profit For The Year

Remeasurament of defined benefit plan {net of 1ax)
Balanco As At March 31, 2020

Summary of Slgnificant Accounling Policies Note 2.3

No. of Shares Amount
{in Lakhs}
§8.10 681.00
68.10 681.00
68.10 681.00
Othor
Reserves and surplus Gamprehonsive Other Equity
Incomao
Total
Securitios Ratained Other ltem of OC|
Pramlum oarnings
695,50 {828.50) . {133.00)
- 26.11 - 26.11
- 1.07 - 1.07
695.50 (801.32) . {105.82)
- {3.58) . {3.58)
- {121.84) - {121.84)
- 1.94 - 1.94
695.50 (924.81) - (229.31)

The accomponying notes ara an integral part of the financials stalamonls
As per our Audit Repon of even date altached

For 5.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Regislration Number: 0D1478N/N500005

Partner
Membership Number 083689

Place of Signalure: 05 M §QJ-‘-\
Date:
12 JUN 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Fabory Indla Pridate Amited

{Atul Aggarwal)

Diraclor

DIN 00125825
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts In T in lakh, oxcop!l otherwise specilicd)

Particulars For the Yoar Endod For the Year Endad
March 34, 2020° March 31, 2019
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit Beforo Tax (131.40) 30.46
Ad)ustments {or:
Dapraclation & Amortization (Net) 39.54 9.79
Intarest Income (12.82) (16.69}
Interest on Lease Liability 6.73 .
Finance Costs 12.85 656
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (0.87) -
Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain & Loss 212 Q.44
Oporatlon Profit Before Working Capltal Changes {83.84) 30,55
Adjustment For:
{Increase) Decrease in Financial Assets 122.58 {34.70)
(ncrease)f Decrease in Other Assels (8.15) (1.60)
{Increase)/ Decrease in inventory 90.86 (132.50)
Increase / (Decrease) In Financial Llabllitias {181.82) 126.78
increase / (Decrease) In Other Liabilitles {1.81) {5.97)
(increase) Decrease in Provisions {7.49) 550
Not Cash Gencroted From Oporations {69.67) {11.94}
Direct Taxes Paid{Net of Refund Recaivad) (3.83) 0.89
Not Cash From Oporating Activitios (A} (73.50) {11.05)
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activitles
Expenditure on Prapeity, Plant & Equipment (net) (19.01) {7.84)
Interest Received 12.63 11.17
Bank Deposits 104.68 532
Net cash Usod In lnvosting Activitlos (B) 98.30 B.65
C. Cash Flow From Flnanclng Activities
Payment of Lease Liability {34.74) -
Barrowing Costs {12.86) {5 56)
Net Cash Used In Financing Aclivitios (C) {47.60) {6.56}
Net tncrease In Cash & Cash Equivalont (A+B+C) (22.80) {8.95)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Tho Bogining Of The Year 132.18 141.14
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year 109.38 132,18
Cash and cash equivalents Includes
Cash on hand 0.65 0.57
Balancss With Schaduled Banks :
- Cutrent Accounts 38.73 71.61
- Deposils with ariginal maturity of three months or less 70.00 6000
109.38 132.18
Nota:-
All figures in brackets represent outfllows.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 23

As per our Audt Report of even date attached
For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registralion Number: 001478N/N500005

DA
{Sandeep Dinodia) X .

[y
10
[
Pariner
Membershlp Numbeor 083689

Place of Signatura M&J&JW
12 JuN

For and on behalf of the Board of Diroctors of
Sterling Fabory India Private Lippited

{Anil arwal)
clor
DIN 00027214

(Atul Aggarwal)
Director

Dgyﬂ 25625



Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31,2020

Note 1: Corporate Information

Slerling Fabory India Privale Limited was formed as a Joint Venture Company (herein referred 1o as
registered with the Regisirar of Companies. Nalional Capilal Terrilory,
Tower A, Jasola Dislrict Centre, New Delhi South Dethl DL 110025 Th

‘the Company') on 9th March 2040 and is
Dethi & Haryana in India and has ils registed office al UNIT NO. 515, DLF
a company is dealing in \he sale of fasteners.

The Shareholding of the company Is jolntly held by M/s. Sterling Tools Limited, India and M/s. Fabory Maslers in Fasleners Group B.V.,
Netherland in the ratio of 50:50.

. Note2,1: Statement of Compliance

. These financial stalemenls have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Sindards (referred to as "Ind AS"

") as proscribed under
seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended lrom tim

e fo lime.
The financial stalemenls are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Direclors on 12th June, 2020,
Note 2.2 : Basls of Proparation

Thase financial slalements have been prepared In accordance with Ind AS as nolifie

Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 and relevanl presentalion requirements of the Companies Act 2013. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost canvention except for certain financial instrumenis (hat are
measured al fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

The financlal stalements are presented in Indian Rupees ¥, which Is also company's functional currency and all values are rounded to the
nearesl| Inkh (upto two decimals) except olherwise staled.

Accounling policies have been consistenlly applled except where a newly issued accounling standard is inillally adopted or a revision lo an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounling policy hilhedo In use.
Golng Concern

The board of direclars have consldered the financial position of the Company at 31 March 2020 and the projecied cash Mlows and financial
performance of the Company for at leas! lwalve months from the date of approval of lhese financial sialemenls with respect lo planned cosl and
cash improvement aclions remains on course. Also, the board of directors have laken zctions 1o ensure thal appropriale lang-lerm cash

resources are in place al the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operalions. In view of above, going concern assumption holds
good.

d under the Companles {Indian Accounting Standards)

Note 2.3 : Signlficant accounting pollcies
a) Significant accountlng Judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conlormity wilh Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAR) requires managemenl to make
judgments, estimales and assumptions {hat affect the application of acceunting policles and \ha reparted amounts of assets, liabililies, income
and expenses and the disclosure of conlingent liabilities on (ke date of the financial stalemenls. Aclual resulls could differ Irom thase estimates.
Estimales and underlylng assumplions are reviewed on an angeing basis. Any revision o accounling eslimales Is recognised prospectively in
current and future periods,

Judgomonts:

In the process of applying the Company's accounling palicies, management has made Ihe following judgemants, which have the mosl significont
affect on the amounls rocognlged in the financia! stalements:

Revenua

The Company assesses its fevenue amangements against specific crileda, l.e. whether it has exposure lo the significanl nsks and rewards
associaled with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to delermine if it Is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company
has concluded that they operating on a princlpal lo principal basls In all s revenue arrangements.

When deciding the most appropriale basis for presenting revenue or cosls of revenue, both the legal form and subslance of the agreement
between the Company and ils business partners are revizwed to determing each pary’s respeclive role in the Iransaction.

Usoful lives of preperty, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the uselul life of property, plant and equipment at Ihe and of each reporing period. This reassessment may resull in
change in deprecialion expense In fulure perods.

tm

Estimates and Assumptions:

The kay assumplions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty al the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amaunts of assets and liabililes within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company
based s assumplions and estimales on parameters available when (he financial stalements were prepared. Existing clreumstances and

assumptions aboul future developments, however, may change due 1o markel changes of circumstances arising thal are beyond the conirol of
ihe Company. Such changes are reflected In the assumplions when lhey oceur.

ty

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income ax laws as applicable in India. Significant judgment Is required In delermining provision for incqme taxes.
Thera are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimale lax delermination is uncerfain during Ihe ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabililies for anticipated lax Issues based on eslimales of whether addilional taxes will be due. Where Ihe final tax oulcome

of thase malters is dilferent from the amounls that were inilially recorded. such differences will impact the income tax and delerred 1ax
provisions in lhe period In which such determinallon is made.

Reacoverabllity of deferred taxos ‘
In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assels, management considers whelher it is probable that laxable profil will be avadable against
which the losses can be uliised. The ullimale realisation of deferred tax assels is dependent upon the generalion ol future taxable ncome

during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Managemeni considers the projected fulure taxable income and tax
planning slrategles In making lhiz assessmant.
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b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assels and liabililias in the balanca sheot based on currant/ non-current classificalion.
Assols:
An assol is Ireated as current when If is: .
a) Expected to be realised or Intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle.
L b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢} Expected Lo be realised vithin twelve months after the reporting period, or

. d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricied from being exchanged or used to setlle a liabilily for ol feast twelve months afier the reporting
peried.

All other assels are ¢lassilied as non-current.

Llabilitios:

Aliabllity is current when:

{a) ltis expected to be cetlled in normal operaling cycle

{b) itis held primarily for the purpase of trading

(c) It is due to be settled vithin twelve months alter the reporling period, or

(d) There Is no uncondilional right to defar the sclllement of the liabilily for at leas! iwelve months aflor the reporiing peried
All other ligbililes are classified as non-cumenl.

Daforred tax assets and tiabililles are classified os non-current assels and liabilities.

Operating cycla: The operating cycle is Ihe lime betwoen the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash aad cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months 33 its operaling cycle.

c) Revenue
Company derives revenue primarily from sale of traded goods.

Revenue from contracl vilh cuslomers Is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount thal
reflects the consideralion to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transfarring distinct goods or services o a cuslomer as
speclfied in the contract, excluding the amount collected on behall of third parties (lor example, laxes and duties collecled on benall of
government). The company has concluded that it is principal in s revenue arrangements.

The Company considers whether there are olher promises in the contracl thal are separate parformance obligations to which a pordion of the
\ransaclion price needs lo be allocaled e.g. warranties. [n delarmining the transaclion price for the salo of products, the Company considers the
effect of vaniable consideration, the exislence of significant financing component, non-cash conslderation, and consideralion payable lo the
customer {if any).

If tha consideration in a contracl includes a varlable amoun, the Company estimates he amount of consideration Lo which it vall be entted
exchange for transferring the goods to lhe cuslomer. The varlable consideration I estimated ail contract Inceplion and consirained unll it [s
highly probable thal a significant revenuse roversal in the amount of ravenue recognisad wiil not occur when the associated unceniainty with Ihe
variable consideration is subsequently resolved, Some confracls for the sale of products provide the customers with volume rebales thal give
rise 10 variable consideration.

Generally, the Company does not receiva shart term or long ferm advances from ils customers oxcopl in certain scenarios, Using the practical
expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does no! adjust the promised amount of conslderation for tha effacts of a sigaificant financing component
ilit expects, at contract inception, that the parlod between the transfer of promised good ar service 1o the customer and when the customar pays
for good or service will be one year of less. Tho company doas not expect 1o have any conlracls where the period belween the transler of
promised goods and services 1o the customer and payment by the cuslomer exceeds one year except where lhe payment lerms might provide
the entily or the customer with protection from the other party failing 1o adequately complele some or all of its obfigations under the contract As
a consequence, il does nol adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Otherlncoma

Inteteslt Income s recognized on time proportion basis taking kilo account the amount oulstanding and rate applicable and where no significant
* uncartainly as to measurabilily or colleclabilily exists..

¢ , ) Propenty, Piant and Equipment

The Company had applied for one lime transilion exemption of considering Lthe carrying cosl on Lhe transilion dale as the deemed cosl under ind
AS,

Property, Plant and Equipment are carried al cost fess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, The cost of property, planl and
equipment Includes non-refundable taxes, dutles, fralght, Insurance, labour cos!, aliocable borrowing cosls and olher directly altribulable cost to
the censtruclion / acquisilion of the assels, Subsequenl expendifure relating to property. plant and equipmenl is capilalised only il such
expenditure resulls in an increase in the fulure benefils from such asset beyond ils previously assessed slandard of performance.

by

Gain or luss ansing on account of sale of propenty, plant and equipmen! are measured as the diffierence betwaen the nel procecds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized In the Stalement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the asset is sold

The Schedute H to the Companles Acl, 2013 requires that uselul life and deprocialion for significant components of an assel should be
delermined seperalely. ldentificallon of significant componenls is matler of judgement and decided on case lo case basis on the facls snd

gircumstances of each cases. The Company capilalise these ¢ost as a separale componenl of Ihe assel with consequen! expensing of net
carrying value of replaced part.

Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment 1s provided on straight-line method over the usalul lives of assets specified in Schedulo 1l 1o the
Compaonles Act, 2013. Depreciation for assots purchased 7 sold during a period is proporfionalely charged to Stalement of Profit & Loss
Leasohold improvements are amoised over the lease tenn or Lhe uselu life of the osssls.

Subsoquent costs: The cost of replacing a part of an llem of property, planl and equipment is racegnised in the carrying amounl of the tem of
propeity. plant and equipment, if il is probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the parl will flow lo the Company and
can be measured reliably with tha carrying amount of the replaced part gelting derecognised, The cost for day-lo-tay servicing of pro _r;zsga_i
and equipment are recognised in stalement of profil and loss as and when incurred M

[
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a) Intangible Asscts

The Company had applied for one time transilion exemption of considering the carrylng cost on the transilion date as the deemed cosl under Ingd

Software which are not an Inlegral part of related hardwara, is trested as intangible assel and amortized over a period of three years or its
licensed period, whichaver Is less.

+ T Iaventories

Invenlog'les are valued al the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost Includes purchase price, freight inwards, custom duty and other
. expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories 1o their present localion and condition but does not includes lhose expendilute which are
. subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from concerned revenue aulhorilies. The costis ascertalned on FIFO basis.

¢) Employea's Bonefits

Expenses and Liabilities in respect of employea benefits are recorded in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employees Benefits
. issued by the Company {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015,

Shert Term Employoce Bonafits; All employees® benefils falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering ihe services are classified as
short term employee benefils, The benefils like sataries, wages, short lerm compensaled absences elc. and the expecied cosl of bonus are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related services at undiscounted amount.

Defined Contribution Plan
For Defined Contribution Retirements Benefil Schemes, paymenls are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Defined Benefit Plan

The cost aof providing defined benefils is delermined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with acluarial valualions being carried oul at cach
balance sheel date. Acluarlal galns and losses are recognized In [ull in the Statement of Profl and Loss for the period In which they oceur, Past
service cosl Is recognized immedlately lo the extent the benefits are already vested, and otherwise Is amortized on a straight line basis over lhe
average pericd unlil the benefils becoma vesled. The reltement benefil obligation recognised in the balanca sheel represents the presenl value
of the defined benefil obligation as adjusled for unrecognlized pas! service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assels Any assat

resulting from this caleulation is fimited to past service cost, plus the present value of avallable refunds and reduglions in future contribulions 1o
the scheme,

Post Employment Banefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Schemas, Ihe £os! of providing banefity I3 detarmined using tha Projeciad Unil Cradil Melhod with acluarial valualions baing
carried oul al each balance sheet date. Acuarial gains and Insses are recognized in the Stalement of Frofil and Loss for the period in which they

occur. Past service cost Is racognized Immedlalely to the extenl that the benefits ate already vested and otherwise Is amorlized on a slraight-line
basis over he average period until the benefils become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheo! represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjustad for
unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the falr value of scheme assels. Any asse! resulting from this calculalion fs limiled to past
service cost, plus the present value of avallable refunds and reductions In fulure conlribulions 1o the scheme.

h) Forelgn Currency Transaclions
Initial Recognition: The transactions in foreign currency are initially accounted for al the rate prevalling as on lhe lransattion date.

Convarslon: Monetary ilems denominated In forelgn currency are reporled using the closing exchange rate on each Balance Sheet Dale. Non-

Monotary items which are carrled in terms of historical cost denominated In a foreign currency are reposted using the axchange rate ol Lhi dale
of ransaclion,

Exchange Differanco: The Exchange diference arising on Ihe selllement of monelary ilems or reporing lhese ilems at rates different lrom

rates at which these were Inilfally recorded/ reporled in previous financlal slatemenls are recognized as Incomefexpense in the period i which
they arise.

»

I} Taxos on Income : Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current Tax
Current tax comprises [he expected lax payable or receivable on the taxable incoms or loss for the year and any adjustment to the ax payoble
N or receivatle in respect of previous years, The amount of current 1ax refiecls the best estimale of the 1ax amount expecled to be paid or

received afler considering the uncertainty, if any, related 10 income taxes. It is measured using lox rates {and tax [awis} cnacted or subslantively
enacled by the reporling date,

Current tax assels and current tax liabilities ara oifset only if there is a legally enforceabts right to sel off the recognised amounts, and it is
Inlended lo realise the asset and settle the liabilily on a net basis or simultaneously,
Deforred Tax

Defetred lax is recognised In respect of lemporary differences between the carrying amounts of Ihe assels and llabilties for financial reporiing

purpases and the coresponding amounls used for 1axalion purposes. Deferred lax is also recognised in respecl of carned forward tax losses
and tax credits.

Deferred lax assels are recognised to the exlent that il is probable that future profils will be available against which they can be used. The
exislence of unused tax fosses is slrong evidence that fulure taxable profit may nol be available. Therelore, in case of hislory of recen! losses,
Ihe Company recognises o defesred fax asset only fo the extenl that it has sufficlent laxable lemporary diferences or Ihere is convincing olher
evidence tha! sufficien taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred lax assels — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reparting date and are recognised / reduced Lo the extenl thalf
probable / no longer probable respectively that Lhe related 1ax benefils will be realized.

Deferred fax Is measused ot lhe 1ax rates thal are expecled to apply to the period wihen the asset Is realized or the llability is seliled. base-(:l;lc‘m
the: laws thal have been enacled or subslantively enacled by the reporting dale. \ :
The measurement of deferred tax reflects tha tax consequences thal would loliow from the manner in which Ihe Compauy expocis. at th
reporling dale, to recover or sellle the carrying amount of s assels and liabilitios.

Deferred lax assets and defered lax labilitlies are offset only if there is a fegally enforceabla right lo offset current lax liabililies and assets, and
they refate to income laxes levied by the same lax authorities.
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Minimum Alternato Tax

Minimum Alternale Tax (MAT} pald in the year is charged to the Statement of Profil and Loss as currenl tax. The Company recognises MAT
ciedit avoilable as an assel only to the exient thot there Is convincing evidence thot the Company will pay normal income Iax duning the specified
period, Le., Ihe period for which MAT credil Is allowed Yo be canded forviard. In lhe year in which Company recognises MAT credil as an assel in
accordance with the Guidance Nole on Accounting for Credit Avallabla in respect of Minimum Alternale Tax under Lhe Income Tax Acl, 1961,
the sald assel is created by way of credit o the Stalement of Profit and Loss and shown as “MAT Credi! Enlillemeant . The Company reviews the
s "MAT Credil Enhilement” assel al each reporting date and wriles down the assel 1o the extent the Company does not have canvincing evidence
that it will pay normat tax during the specified pearlod.
. In accardance with Ind AS 12 Company is grouping MAT credit enlillement with Deferred Tax Assels / Liability (Net).
« ]} Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract thal givas rise lo 4 financial asset lor one entily and a financiat liability or equity instrument for another entity

Financial Assats

Initial rocognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair volue plus, In the case of financial assets nol racorded at fair value Ihrough proft of loss,

transaclion cests that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financlal asset. Transaction costs of inanclal assets carned at far value
through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

Subsoquent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified In four calegorles:
-Debt instruments al amortised cost

+Debt inslruments al fair value through ather comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

~Oebt instruments, derivalives and equily Instruments at fair value through profil and loss {(FVTPL)
-Equity Inslruments measured at falr value through olher comprehensive income (FVTOCH

Dubt Instruments at amortised cost

The calegory applies {o the Company's trade and olher receivables, cash and cash equivalents, securily deposils and olher fpans and
advances, el¢.

A debl instrument is measured al the amortised cost if both the fallowing conditions are met:

{!) The assel is hald wilhin a business model whose objeclive Is to he!d assets for collacting conlractual cash flows and

{ii} Contractual lerms of lhe asset give rise on specified dales 1o cash flows that are solely paymanis of principal and interest (SPFI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

Alter inillal measuremenl, such financial assels are subsegquently measured al amortised cosl using the effective interest rale {(EIR) method
Amaoitised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acqulsilion and fees or costs that are 2n integral part of the EIR
The aceretion of EIR is recarded as an incoma or expense In statement of proiit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instrumoms

Al egquily Investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are mepsured al fair value.

For alf other equity instruments, the Company may make an itravocable election o presant In other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such eloction on an instrument by- inslrument basts. The classification Is made on inital recognition and
is rrevocable. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, than all fair value changes on the inslrumenl, excluding
dividends, are recognized In the OCI. Thera is no recycling of the amounts from OCI 10 statamant of profit and loss, aven on sale of vestment

However, the Company may lransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equily. Equity Instruments Included within the FYTPL calegory and
measured al fair value with all ehanges recognized in the slatement of Profit and Loss.

Do-recognitlon

A financial asset {or, where applicabie, a pad of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (L.o. removed from the Company's Balance Sheat)
when:

{i} The contractul fights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
{} The Company has transferred Ils contraclual rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial a5sel or has assumed an ohbgation to pay the
received cash flowss in full without maleriat detay 1o a ihird party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (g) the Company has lranslerred

subslantially ot the risks and rewards of the assel, or {b) the Company has neither transferrod not relained substantially ail the risks and
rewards of [he asset, but has transferred conleo! of the assel,

an

Flnancial Liabilitles
Initial recognition and measuroment
Financial iabilities are classified, al nilial recognilion, as financial liabfities al falr value through profit or loss.

At financial liabitities are recognised initially at falr value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of direclly allnbulable
Iransaclion cosis.

The Company’s financial liabililies include trade and other payables, securily deposits received ele.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial Liabilities are classiied in two calegories:
-Financial labllilies at amortised cosl

-Financial iabilities at fair value through profit and less (FVTPL)

te

Financial lfabllitles at Amortized cost
Loans and borrowlngs
De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligalion under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial hability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantlally dilferent tlerms or the terms of an oxisling liabilily are suhsianlially modified, such

an exchange or modification is trealed as the de-tecognilion af (he original tiability and the recognition of a new fiabflily. The difference n e
respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in the stelement of profit and loss.

.
o
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k} Fair valug maasurement

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell ap asse
lhe measuremenl date, The falr value measurement is ba
lakes place either:

(a) In \he principal markel for the assel or fability, or
(2} Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advanlageous market for the asset or liability

1 or paid {o lransfer a liability in an orderly transaclion behwaen markel panicipants al
sed on the prasumplion that the Iransaclion lo sel! lhe assel or Iransfer the liabiity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an assel or a liabilily is measured using
the assumplions that markel parlicipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markel paricipants aclt in their economic
A falr value measurement of a non-financlal asset takes into account a markel pariicipant's abilily lo generale economic benefits by using (he
assel In ils highest and best use or by selling il to another market parlicipant thal would use the assel In its highest and besl use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are apprapriate In the cireumslances and for which sufficlent dala are available to measure fair
volue, maximising the use of relevanl observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assels and liabilities for which falr value is measured or disclosed in the financial slalements are categorised within the fare value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowes! level Input that is significant te Ihe falr value measurement as 3 whola:

Leve! 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) maskel pricas in active markets for idenlicat assals or liabitilies

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Inpul that is significant lo the falr value measuremenl is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 —‘Valuation techniquas for which the lowesl levelinpul that is significant o the fair value measurement Is unobservable

For assels and liabilities thal are recognised In the financial stalemenls on a recurring basis, the Company delermines whelher transfers have

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing calegorisalion (based on the lowes! lavel inpul thal is signilican! lo the [air value
measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporling period.

1} Impairment
Impalmment of Financial Assots

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expacted credlt loss (ECL) modet for measurement and tecognition of impairmenl loss on
\ha [ollowing financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financlal assels that are dab! Inslruments, and are measurad al amorlised cost a.g., loans, dobl securilies, deposits, Irade receivables and
bank balance.

For recognilion of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines thal whelher there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognilion, If credit risk has nol Increased significantly, 12-menth ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss, However, If credit risk has increased significantly, lifelime ECL is used. If, In a subsequent period, credil quality of Lhe
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant Increase In credkt risk since iniliol recognition, then the enlily revers to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-monlh ECL.Financial liabllilies are classified, at Inilial recognition, as financial labilities at falr value
(hrough profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instrumenls in an effective hedge, as appropriale Al
financia! habiliies are recognised inttially at fair vatue and, in the case of barrowings and payablas, net of directly atiribulable lransachon costs.
The Company's financial lizbilities Include trade and other payables, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Impalrment of Non Financlal Assots

The carrying amounls of the Company's non-financial assels are raviewed at oach reporting dale o determine whether there Is any indication of

impairment considering the provisions of ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'. If any such indicalion exfsis. then the assel's recoverable amounl is
eslimated.

For impairment testing, assels thal do nol generate independent cash inflaws are grouped togelher Into cash-generating unils (CGUs). Each

CGU represenls Ihe smallest group of assets lhat generala cash Inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflaws of the other assels or
CGUs,

The recaverable amount of an asset or cash-generaling unil is the higher of its falr value less costs of disposal and its value inuse In assessing
value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using 2 pre-lax discount rate that reflects currenl markel
assessments of the time value of money and the risks spacific 1o the assel. For the putpose of impaltment lesling, assets thal cannot be ltested
Indlvidually are grouped togother inlo the smallest group of assets thal generates eash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash Infiows of other assels or groups of assels (the “cash-generaling unil*, or "CGU".

The Company's corporale assels (eg. Central office buiding for providing suppod to various CGUs) do nol generale independent cash inflows
To determine Impairment of a corporale assel, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs lo which the corporale assets belongs.

An impairment loss Is recognised if Ihe carrying amouni of an assel or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amounl. Impairment losses are
recognised in the stalemenl of profil or loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU Is allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of

any goadwill altocated to CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of any other assets of the CGUs (or graup of CGUs
an a nrn.rala hasis

m) Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contlngent Assets

Provisions are recognizad in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations arising as a result of past events and 1t is probable thal
Ihere vall be an outllow of resources, the amount of which can ba reliably estimated.

Contlngent liabllitfes are disclosed In respect of possible obligations Ihat arise from past evenls but lheir existence is confirmed by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly wilhin the canlrol of the Company.

Contingont Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial slatements.
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n} Earming por share

In delermining earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax and Includes the post lax effect of any exira ordinary ilems.

- Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing Ihe net profit or loss for the year ellributable to equity shareholders by the waighted average

number of equity shares oulstanding during Lhe year.

- For the purpose of calculating Diluled Earning per share, Ihe net profit or loss for the period allibulable lo equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares oulstanding during the period are adjusted for the eflacls of all dilutive potential equity shares.

loases
Accounting - As a lessca

The company's lease asse! classes primarily consisl of leases for land and buildings.The Company assessas whelher a conlract conlans a
lease,al inceplion of a contracl.A conlract is,or conlains.a lease If the conlract conveys the right to cantrol the use of an identified asset for a
period of time In exchange for consideralion.To assess whether acontract convays the right to conlrel the use of an ideniified asselthe
Company assesses whether: {f) the contract involves lhe use of an idantified assel (%) the Company has substantially all of the econornic
banefils (rom use of the asset through Ihe period of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direcl the use of the asset.

Al lhe dale of commencement of tha lease,the Company recopnizes a right-of-use assel("ROU") and a corresponding lease liabilily for all leage
arrangaments in which ILis a lessea, excapt for feases wilh a lerm of hwelve months or lass (shorl-lermleases) and low value leases.For lhese

short-lerm and low value leases,the Company recognizes lhe lease peyments as an operaling expense on a siraight-line basis over the term of
tha lease

Certoin lease arangements include the options 1o exlend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease lerm. ROU asscls and lease
liabilities includes these oplions when it Is reasonably cersin that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assels are initially recognized al cost,which comprises the inilfal amounl of the fease labilily adjusted for any lzase payments

made al or prior lo Ine commencement dale of the lease plus any initial direct cosis less any lease incenlives. They are subsequently measured
al cosl less accumulated deprecialion and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assels are deprecialed [rom the commencement dale on a siraight:lina basis over the shorler of Ihe lease term and use fui lila of

the underlying assel.Right of use assels are evalualed for recoverabilily whenever evenls or changes in circumsiances indicate (hat their
carrying amounls may not be recoverable,

The lease liability is initially messured at amortized cost at the present value of the fulure lease paymenls. The lease paymenis are discounted
using the interes! rate implicit In tho leaseor,if no! readily determinable,using the incremental borrowing rates.Lease liabilities are remeasured

with a corresponding adjustment (o the refated right af use asset if the Company changes iis assessment if whather it will exercise an extension
or a lermination oplion.

Transitlon

Efiective from April1,2019, the Company adepled IndAS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard 1o all lease conlracls existing on Aprl1,2019
using the modified relrospeclive method and has taken the cumulative adjustment lo retalned earnings.on the date of inilial
application.Consequently,lhe Company recarded the lease liabilily at the present value of the lease paymenls discounted at the incremental
borrowing rale and the righl of use assel at ils carrylng amount as if the slandard had been spplied since the commencement date of the
fease,but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate £t the date of inlfial application.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elecled on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate 1o a portfolio of leases of similar assels in similar ecanomic environment with a similar end date

2. Applied the exemplion nol to recognize right-of-use assels and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of fease lerm on (he dale of initial
applicalion

3. Excluded the initial diract costs from the measuremenl of the right-of-use assel al the date of inifial application.
The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilitios as at Aprif 1, 2019 is 10%

p) Opurating Segmaent

In accardance wilth Ind AS 108, the operaling segments used lo presenl segment Information are identiied on the basis of internal roports used
by the Company's Management to atlocate resources 1o the segments and assess their parformance. The Board of Direclors is collectively tho
Company’s ‘Chief ,
Operating Declsion Maker or 'CODM' within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicalors used for inlernal reporting purposes may evolve in
connaclion with perfcrmance assessment measures pul in place,

q) Cash Flow Statement

The cash flows are reported vsing the Indirect methed, whereby profit before lax is adjusted for the effects of transactions_af a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operaling cash receipls or payments and item of income or expenses assaociated wllt_l investing or
finanging eash Nows. The cash flows from operaling, invesling and financing aclivilles of Ihe Company are segrogaled as specified in Indian
Accounling Standard 7 - Cash Flow Siatement.

7) Cash and Cash Equlvalents

Cash compiises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-lerm highly liquid invesiments thal are readily
converlible into known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

. {(All amounts in X in lakh, except otherwise specified)

N Note 4 : Right Of Use Assets

Particulars Bulldings Total
. Gross Carrying Value
As At April 1, 2019 108.83  108.83

Add. Additions made during the year - -
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the year - -

As At March 31, 2020 108.83  103.83
Depreciation
As At April 1, 2019 34.45 34.45
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 28.02 28.02
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the year - -
As At March 31, 2020 62.46 62.46
Net Carrying Value as at April 01, 2019 74.38 74.38
Net Carrying Value as at March 31, 2020 46.37 46.37

e

'y

[This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

(Allamounts in ¥in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 5 : Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Total
Software

Gross Carrying Value (Deemed Cost)

As At April 1, 2018 0.70 0.70
Add: Additions made during the year 0.43 0.43
Less: Disposals/adjusiments during the year -

As At March 31, 2019 1.13 1.13
Add. Addilions made during the year - -
Less: Disposalsfadjustments during the year - -
As At March 31, 2020 1.13 1.13
Amortisation and Impairments

As At Aprit 1, 2018 0.43 0.43
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 0.24 0.24
Less. Disposalsfadjustments during the year
As At March 31, 2019 0.67 0.67
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 0.19 0.19
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the year - -
As At March 31, 2020 0.86 0.86

Net Carrying Value As At 1 April , 2018 0.27 0.27

Nei Carrying Value as at 31 March, 2018 0.45 0.45

Net Carrying Value as at 31 March, 2020 0.26 0.26

[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts In T in lakh, except otherwise spocliiod)

Note 6 : Other Financial Assot

Non-Curront Currant
As At As At As At As At
March 31,2020  March 31,2019  March 31,2020 March 31, 2049
Secunly Daposils * 5.72 5.22 -
Interest Accrued on FDR - - 018 552
572 8.22 G.18 5.52

* The Company has delermined ils securily deposits not te be in the nature of loans, and accordingly have been classified as part of other financial

Note 7 : Doforrod Tax Assots {Net) As At As At
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Dotarrod tax assots

Gross Defarred Tax Assels

34.30 2283
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Enlitlement 563 .
Total doforred tax assots (Not} 40.44 22.83
a) Mavament in Gross Dolarrod Tax Assots

As At IndAS 116 Recognised In Racognised In As At
March 31, 2018 adopton; Statomont of Profit  Statomont of March 31, 2020
'Rocognised In and Loss Othor
oponing Retalnod Comprehonsivo
Earings Income
ind AS 116 Adoption Impact . 1.26 126
Property. Plant & Equipment. 297 . 0.67 . 364
Impact  of difisrence between
Deprecialion as per !ncome Tax
Act & Depreciation/Amorlizalion as
per Companies Act
Provision for employee benefits 6.33 . {1.47) {0 46) 4.40
Provision {or Stov/Non Moving ol 22 - 8.67 . 10.97
inventones
Unzabsorbed Depraciation 11.08 - 2.57 . 1365
impacl of other expendilures 0.25 - 0.95 . 120
charged o lhe Statement of Profit
and Loss In the current year bul
allowed for lax gpurposes on
moviramnt bhaslbe
22.83 1.26 11.40 {0.46) 35.03
Noto B : Other ‘Non- Current’ & 'Curront Assats’ Non-Current Current
As At As At As At As At

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

Advanco to Suppliers - - 0.88 221
Prepaid Expenses 00z a.01 324 1 E6
Daferred Assets 084 117 053 053
Balance with Revenue Autharities - 3.87 398
Advanca 10 Employee - 0.50 0.10
Recoverable inpul tax credil . - 6.00 .

0.66 1.18 15.03 8.68
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts in ¥ In lakh, excopl otherwisc spocifiod)

Nota 9 ; Inventories
{As taken, valuad and corfied by the management)

Stock-in-Trade
Stock-in-Trade ;: Goods in Transit
Packing Malerial

Less: Pravisions for Slew and Non maoving Inventeries- Slock in Trade

Note 10 : Trade Rocolvablos

Trade Receivables Considered Good- Unsecured
Trade Recelvables Considered Good- Secured

Trade Receivables which have signifi¢anl increase in Credil Risk; and
Tracde Receivables - credit impaired

Note 11 : Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances With Scheduled Banks :
- Current Accounts

As Al
March 31, 2020

As At
March 31, 2018

20763 287 .61
24 B6 2%
1.681 1.11
234.10 291.64
41,79 848
192.30 283.16
As At As At

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2018

238.06 386 43
238.86 356.43
As At As At

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

38.73 7161
« Deposits with onginal maturity of three months or less 1000 G0.0C
Cash on hand 065 057
109.28 132.18
Noto 12 : Bank Balanco ether than Cash
and Cash Equivalont Non-Current Current
As At As At As At As At
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deposit Accounts Wilh Criginal Malurity Of More Than 3
Months Bul Less Than 12 Months - - 5000 134.68
Deposils with onginal maturity of more than 12 months . . . -
- - 50.00 154.G8
Less: Amounl disclosed under ~ Olher Financlal Assels® - - - -
- - 50.00 154.68
Note 13 : Curront Tax Assots{Not) As At As At
March 31, 2020 flarch 31, 2019
Advanca fncome Tax & TDS (MNet of Pravision 2 Mil, March 31, 2019 - T Nil) 279 412
2.79 4,12

[This page has been left blank inlentionall}




Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in T in lakh, except olherwise specified)

Note 14 : Share Capital As At As At
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Autharised:

80 lakh (March 31, 2019: B0 lakh) equity shares of T10/- each 800.00 800 00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up:
68.10 lakh (March 31, 2019: 68.10 lakh) equily shares of T10/- each 681 00 681.00

681.00 681.00

a) Reconclliation of Authorised, Issued and Subscribed Share Capital:

I. Reconciliation Of Authorised Share Capital March 31, 2020 March 31, 219

Na. of Shares* Amount No. of Shares* Amount
Balange As At April 1, 2018 80.00 800.00 80.00 800.00
Incseasel{decrease) during the year - - - -
Balance As At March 31, 2019 80.00 800.00 80.00 800.00
Increasef{decrease) during the - - - -
Balance As At March 31, 2020 80.00 BGD.0O 80.00 800.00
Il. Reconciliation of Issued and Subscribed Share Capital March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

No. of Shares Amount No, of Shares Amoun}
Quistanding at the Beginning Of The Year 68.10 681.00 68 10 681.00
Add. Increase/{Decrease) During The Year - - - -
Qutstanding at the End Of The Year 66.10 651.00 68.10 681.00

b} Terms/rights Attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each helder of Equity shares Is enliltad 1o ane
vole per share. In lhe even of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled lo receive remaining assels of
the company, aiter distribution of all preferentiai amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders. No dividend is proposed by Board of Direclors of the Company

¢) Dotalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the company

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

No. of Shares® % holding No, of Sharas® % hotding
Slarling Tools Limited 34.05 50.00% 3405 50 00%
Fabery Masters in Fasteners Group B.V. 34.05 50.00% 3405 50.00%

* No of shares in Lakhs,

Nota 15 ; Other Equity As At As At
March 31, 2020 March 31, 20189
Security Premium _ 69550 695.50
Retained Earnings * (924.81) {801.32)

Total (229.31) (105.82)
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts In ¥in lakh, except otherwise specifiod)

a) For Movement during the period in Other Equity, refer "Statement of Change in Equity”.
b) Nature and Purpose of Other Equity
{1} Sacurity Pramium

The amount received in excess of face value of Ihe eqully shares is recognised in Securities Premium Rescrve. In case of
equity-seliled share based payment lransactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of
share is accounted as securities premium reserve. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with provisions of the
Companies Act 2013,

{!) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profils that the Company has earned 1ill date, less any fransfers to general reserve, dividends
or other distributions paid to shareholders. All the profits made by the Company are Iransferred to retained earnings from
statement of profil and loss.

[This page has been left blank inlentionally]




on

e

Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in ¥ in lakh, except otherwise specified)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 16 : Other Financial Liabilities * Non-current Current Non-current Current
Lease Liability 22.37 30.28 - .
Creditors for Capital Expenditure - 0.27
22.37 30.56 - -

* The above amount does not include any amount due to be transfarred to Investor Education & Protection Fund

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 17 : Provisions Non-current Current Non-current Current

Provisions For Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences {Refer Note No, 28) 460

0.24 512 358
Gratuily {(Refer Note No, 28) 9.30 0.11 732 8.35
13,90 0.35 12.44 11.93

. As At As At
Note 18 : Trade Payables March 31,2020 March 31, 2049
- Total oulstanding dues lo micro enterprises and small enterprises 2416 310

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises anid small -

enterpnses (Refer Sub-note ‘a* below) 17972 38218
203.38 385.28

(i) Trade payables to relaled parties amounts to T 89,10 lacs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019 : 2 124.19 Lacs)

{ii} As per Schedule Il of the Comparies Act, 2013 and as cerlified by the management, the amounlt due 10 Mhcro. small & medium
enlerpnses as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as under

Principal Interest Total
[ PO 3

(a) the poncipal amount and ihe interest due thereon {lo be shown separately)
remaining unpaid lo any suppler at the end of each accounting year; 2416 . 2416

(b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in {erms of section 16 of the Micro,
Small andg Medium Enlerprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2008), along with
ihe amount of the paymeni made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

mmeh annsinbine asae

{c) the amount of inlergst due and payable for the period of detay in making

payment {which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but -
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

{d) the amount of interest accrued and remamning unpaid at the end of each

acecounting year; and ) ) '
(e) the amount of furlher interest remamning due and payable even in the

succeeding years, until such date whan the inlerest dues above are actually paid

to the small enterpnse, for the purpose of disallowance of a deduclible expenditure - - -

under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Entarprises Development Agl,
anng

(1ii} The amount does not include any amount due to be transferred 1o Investor Protection and Education fund.

{iv) This information has been compiled in respect of parties to the exient they could be Identified as Micro & Small Enterprises on the basis
of informalion available wath the Management as at March 31, 2020.

A As Al As At
Note 19 : Other Current Liabilities March 31, 2020 March 34, 2019

Advance From Customer
Statutory Dues

6.52 793
9233 972
16.84 17.68
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{Allamounts in T in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 20 : Revenue From Operations For The Year Ended

March 31, 2020

For The Year Ended
March 31, 2019

Sale of Products

- Finished Goods - -

« Traded Goods 1,120.57 1,395.70

Other Operating Revenues

- Service Income 10.00 10.00
1,130.57 1,405.70

a) Details of products sold For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2018

Traded goods sold
Fasieners 1.120.57 1,395.70
Note 21 : Other Income For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest on
- Fixed Deposits 12.32 16.69
- Others® 0.50 0.45
Other Non Operating Income
=Miscellaneous Scrap 0.07 029
-Sundry Balances Written Back 0.21 0.22
-Profit on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment {Net Gain) 0.87 -
-Miscellansous Income - 193
13.97 14.58
* Represents interes! income under effective interest rale method on security depasits at amortised cost.
Notle 22 : Purchase of Stock-in-trade For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Purchase of Fasteners 698.96 1,082.38
698,96 1,092.38
Note 23 : Changas in Inventories of Finished Products, Stock-in- For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

Trade and Work-ln-Progress March 31, 2020

March 31, 2049

Inventories at the beginning of the year
- Traded Goods

290.53 145,03
250,53 145.03

Inventories at the end of the year
- Traded Goads 23249 200.53
' 232,48 290.53
{Increase)f decrcase in invantories * 58.04 (145.50)

T The abave figure wicludas expense of T .74 lakb (31 March, 20153: ¥ .04 lakh) on account af wrila-down ol invantories 1o net realisable valug in

cuerent financial year
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts in T in lakh, oxcept otherwise specified)

Note 24 : Employee Benefits Expense For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Salary Wages & Bonus 267.45 232.79
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 17.10 14.71
Gratuily Expenses (Refer Note No 28) 3.65 4.64
Compensated Absences (Refer Note No. 28) 1.94 1.81
Staff Weifare Expanses 479 3.77

294,94 257,72

For The Yoar Ended  For The Year Ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note 25: Finance Costs
Interest on
- Delayed paymant of income Tax 0.39 0.12
- Lease liability 8.73 -
- Other 0.19 -
Other borrowing cosl 6.13 6.56
13.44 6.68
Note 26 : Depreciation ForTha Year Ended For Tho Yoar Endod
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation expense on Propery Pland and Equipment 11.34 9.55
Amorbizalion expense on Intangibe Asets 0.19 024
Amorizalion expense on Right of Use Assels 28.02 -
39.54 9.80

[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts in ¥ in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 27 : Other Expenses

Packing Malerials Consumed

Job Work Charges

Electricity & Water Expenses

Rent

Repairs & Maintenance charges
Insurance

Legal & Profassional Charges

Rates and {axes

Paymant to Auditors {Refer nole ‘a’ below)
Travelling & conveyance expenses
Fraight Qutward

Communicalion Expenses

Walch & Ward Expenses

Bank Charges

Exchange Fluctuation (Nel)

Bad Debts wrilten olf

Provision for non moving stock-in-irade
Recruitment Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

a) Detalls of Payments to Auditors:
As Auditor:

- Statutory audil

- Tax audit

In other ¢apacity

- Taxalion Mallers

- Other Services

- Out of packet expenses

For The Year Ended For The Yoar Ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

5.14 631
7.24 625
5.66 6 05
0.69 35 35
375 1.49
1.18 391
5.03 209
0.85 0.22
5.44 242

20.92 1598
2303 28 68
7.47 6.59
2537 26.72
3.64 2141
3.59 0.44
204 329
33.32 B.48
5.49 7.89
1122 9.49
171.02 173.75
2.10 1.50
110 0.90
2.00 .
0.24 0.02
5.44 2.42

[Tiis space has been left blank infentionall}




e

LY

Sterling Fabory India Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts In ¥ In lakh, excapt otherwiso specifiod)

Note 28 : Gratuity And Other Post-Employmont Renefit Plans
a} Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contribution lowards provident fund/ penslon fund, Under the scheme, the Company Is required lo contribute a specified
percentage of payroii cost. as speclfied in the rules of the schemes, ta the defined contfibulion schema.

For the year ended For the yoar endod
March 31, 2020 Maech 31, 2019
Ptovident Fund 16.80 14.35
ESI Conritution 0.12 0.30
Labour Welfare Fund 0.17 0.06
Total 17.10 14.11

b) Doflned henefit plans

In accordance wilh Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits™, an acluarial valuation on the basis of "Projected Unit Credit Melhed® was carried oul. through
which the Company is able o delermine the present vaiue of obligations. "Projected Unit Cradit Methed" recognizes eagh period of sarvice as giving
rise to additlonal unit of employacs banefit entilement and maasures each unit separately to buill up tha finat obligation.

i) Gratuity schemeo

The gratuity plan s governed by (he Payment of Graluily Act, 1972, Under the Act, employen who has complaied flva years of service 1s enlitied lo
specific banafit. Tha level of benefits provided depends on lhe member's length of service and salary at ratirement aga

il} Componsated absoncos

The Company oparales compensated absances plan wharein every employee is entitfad to tha bonefil equivalent lo 26 days leave salary for
every completed year of service subject to maximum §0 accumulations of leaves. The salary lor calculation of earned leava 15 last dravn salary.
The same Is payable during the service. early rotitement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee.

¢) The [ollowing tables summarize the componenis of nat beneflt expanse recognised In the Stalemenl of profil and loss and the funded stalus and
amounts recognisad in the balance sheel for the dafimed benefil plan {viz. gratuily and compensaled absences).Leave encashment include earmed
leaves. These have been provided on accrual basis, basad on year end actuarial valuation.

As At March 31, 2020 As Al March 31, 2019

Gratuity  Earpod loave  Graluily Earned leave
{Unfunded) {Unfundod) (Unfundod] {Unlundod)

Change In benofit obligation

1 Opening defined benefit obligation 15.67 8.70 12,46 7.85
2 Acquisilion Adjustmenl - . . -
3 Add: Interest cost 0.87 0.47 093 0.59
4 Add Current sarvice cosl 2758 147 in 2.68
5 Add: Past Service cost - . . .
6 Laoss: Benefits pag {8.15) {4.94) . (0.97)
7 Add: Actuarial {gaun) / foss {1.76) {0.86) (1.44) {1.46}
Presont value of obligation as at the end of the year 8.41 4.84 15,67 8.70

d} Tha following lables summariso the compononts of net benofit expenso recopnlsad In tho Statement of proflt or loss and tho funded
status and amounts recognisod In the batance sheet for the respoective plans:

For tho yoar onded
Morch 31, 2020
Gratulty Earned loave

{Unfunded} {Unfundod} (Uanfunded) (Unfunded)

For the year endod
March 31, 2019
Gratulty Earnod loave

Cost for tho yoar Includod undor employoee benefit

Add: Cument service cost 270 1.47 37 268
Add: Past service cost . . . -
Add: Interest cost 0.87 047 0.93 0.59
Less: Return on plan assels . . . .
Add. Actuanal {gain) f loss® - - . (1 46}
Not cost 3.66 1.94 4.64 1.81

* Transforrcd 1o OC)
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Notes to Financlal Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts In ¥ in lokh, oxcept othorwise specified)

o) Changes In the fair vafue of the plan assots are as (allows:

Falr value of plan asselr at tha beginning

Add: Invesiment income

Add: Expecled refurn on plan assels

Add: Employer's Conlribution

Add: Employee's Contritution

Less: Benelils pad

Add: Acluarial gains / (lesses) on the plan assels
Falr value of plan asscts at the end

f) Dotail of actuarial gainfioss recognised In OCI is as follows:

Acluarial gan / (loss) for tho year — obligation
Actuariat gain / (loss) for the year - plan assels
Totat gain / {loss) {or the year

Acluanal gain / (loss) recognised in (he year

Unrecogrised actuanal gains / (losses) at the
and of year

th & W R -

For the yoar ondod
March 31, 2020

Gratuity  Earnod leavo
{Unfundod} {Unfunded)

For the year onded
March 31, 2019

Gratuity  Earnod lvave

- -+

{Unfunded)  (Unfundod)

For the yoar onded
March 31, 2020

Gratulty  Earnod leave
{Unfunded)] (Uniundod)

For the yoar endad
March 31, 2019

(1.76) (0.86)

{1.76) {0.86)
(1.76) {0.86)

g) Princlpal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheot date are as follows:

Ecenomic assumplions
1 Discount rale
2 Rale ol increase n compensation lovels

Demographle assumptions
1 Expecled average remafning working fives of
employees (years)
2 Relirement Aga {years)
3 Morlality Rate

Withdrawal Rate
All Ages

For tho yoar onded
March 31, 2020

Gratulty
{Unfunded} (Unfundod)

Earned leave

Gratuity  Earned loave
{Unfundaed)  (Unfundod)
{1 44) .
{1 34) .
{1 44)

Faor the yoar ended
March 31, 2019

Gratuity
{Unfundod) {Unfunded)

Earned leave

6.67% 6.67%
5.00% 5.00%
20 .
58 58
indian Assured Lives

7 50% 7 50%
7.00% 7T00%
22
58 58

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2012-14} (modified) Monally (2006-08) (modified)

1% 1%

10% 10%

The estimales of fufure salary increases, cansidered in acluarial valuation, lake accounl of Inflation, sanlerily, prometion and othor relevant factors,

such as supply and demand in tha employment markel.

h) Nat (assots) / labilities recognized in the Balance Shoot and experlence adjustmants on actuarial gain / {loss) for benelll obligation and

plan assols.

Frasen! value of obligation
Less: Fair value of plan assels
Mot [assots) f liabiity

For tho yoar ended
March 21, 2020

\ Gralulty  Earned loave
I *
A &\nfunded)  {Unfundad)

For tho yvar ondod
Masch 31, 2019

Gratuity  Earnad loava
{Unfunded) {Unfundoed)

9.41 4.84

1567 8.70

9.41 4.84

15.67 a.70
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1} A quantitative sensitivity analysls for signiticanGC®sumption as is as shown below:

A. Discount rate

Decrease on DBO due to 1% increase In Discount Rale
Increase on DBO due o 1% decrease n Discount Rata

B, Salary oscalatlon rato

Increase on DBO dua to 1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate
Decrease on DBC due to 1% decrease in Satary Escalation Rate

C. Withdrawal Rato
Effect on DBO due 1o 1% increase in Withdrowal Rate

Effact on OBO due 10 1% decrease in Withdrawal Rate

i} Maturity proflie of definod benefit obligation Is as follows:

1 year
210 5 years
Abave 5 years

For the year onded
March 31, 2020

Graluity  Earnod loava

For the yoar ondod
tarch 31, 2019

Gratuity  Earnod leave

1.20 0.47
1.44 0.55
1.50 0.58
1.26 0.50
¢12 0.07
0.15 0.08

As at March 31, 2020
Gratulty  Earnod loave

063 023
057 026
0.63 0.26
057 024

As at March 31, 2019
Gratuity  Earnod loave

0.11 0.24
1.92 1.45
7.38 3.15

{Tius space has been left biank inlenlionall}

833 358
2.30 2.43
4.52 269
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Nole 28: Capital Management

For the purpose of Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

altributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objeclive of lhe Company's capilal management is to maximise the
shareholder value

Tha Company manages ils capital structure and makes adjusiments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders of 1ssue new
shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is ne! debt divided by total capita! plus net debt.

As At As At
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Trade Payables {Refer Note No. 18) 203.59 3gs5.28
Other Financial Liabilities 5293 -

Clher Payables (Refer Note No., 19) 15.84 17.65
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents {Refer Note No. 11) 109.38 132.18
Net debt 163.28 270.75
Equity share capital {Refer Note No. 14) 68100 681.00
Other equily {Rofer Note No. 15) {220.31) {105.82)
Total Capital 451.69 §75.18
Capital and net debt 614.97 8456.93
Gearing ratio 2% 32%

No changes were made in the objectives, palicies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March
31, 2019

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst olher things, aims lo ensure thal it meets
linancial covenants atiached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital siructure requirements

[This page has been laft blank intentionally]
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Note 30 : Falr Values

. Set out below, is a comparison by class of the camrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial insiruments Here
. the disclosure is made for non-current financial assets and nen-current financial liabilifies, carrying value of current financial
assefs and financial liabilities including trade receivable, cash and cash equivalent, other bank balances, other financial
assels, trade payables , lease liabililies,current borrowing, olher current financlal liabililies etc. represent the best estimate of
fair value.

The managemen! assessed that fair value of these short term financial assets and liabilities significanlly approximate their
carrying amount largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

a) Fair value of Financlal Assets:

Carrying Values Fair Values
Financial assets measured at As At As At As At As Al
amortised cost March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Securily Deposits 572 522 572 522
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposils 0.19 5,52 0.19 5,52
Trade Recelvables- Considered 238.86 356.43 238.86 356.43
Cash and Cash Equivalents 109.38 132.18 109.38 132.18
Other Bank Balances 50.00 154.68 50.00 154.68

404,15 654.03 404.15 654.03
b) Fair Value of Financial Liabilities:

Carrying Values Fair Values

As At As At As At As At

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Financial Liabilities Measured At
Amortised Cost

Lease Liabilities 52.65 - 52.65 -
. Creditors for Capital Expenditure 0.27 - 0.27 -
- Trade payables 203.88 385.28 203.89 385.28
. 256.81 385.28 256,81 385,28

Management has assessed that rade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, irade payables, Interest
accrued on FDR approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments.

[This space has been left blank infentionalf]
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Note 31 : Falr Value Hierarchy

All financial nstruments for which far value is recognised or disclosed are calegorised wilhin the fair value hierarchy. descrbed as
follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices n active markets for identical assets or liabilies.

Level 2: Valuation techniques {or which the lowesl level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Valuation techmques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement 1s not based on
observable market data.

The followang lable provides the falr value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and habilities

a) Quantitative Disclosures Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy For Assets As At March 31, 2020:

As At Quoted Significant Significant Total
March 31, 2020 prices In observable unobservabie
active markets inputs Inputs
(Level 1} (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets Measured At Amortised Cost

Security deposits 572 - - 572 572
Intersst accrued on fixed deposits 0.19 - - 0.19 0.19
Trade Recelvable:

Trade Receivables- Considered Good 238 .86 - - 238 86 238 86
Cash and Cash Equivalents 109.38 - - 109 38 100 38
Other Bank Balances 50.00 - - 5000 50 00
Total 404.15 . - 404,15 404,15

b} Quantitative Disclosures Falr Value Measurement Hierarchy for Liabilities As At March 31, 2020:

As At Quoted Significant Significant Total
March 31, 2020 prices In observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial Llabilitles Measured at Amortised

Cost

Lease Liabilities 5265 52 65 52 65
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 0.27 027 0.27
Trade payables 203.89 - - 20389 203 89

Total 258.81 - - 256.51 256.81
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€) Quantitative Disclosures Falr Valuo Measurement Hierarchy for Asscls As At March 31, 2019:

As At Quoted Significant Significant Total
March 31, 2019 prices in chservable unobservable
active markats Inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) {Lavel 3)

Financial Assels Measured At Amorlised Cost

Security deposils 5.22 - - 522 522
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 5.52 - - 552 5.52
Trade Receivables- Considered Good 356.43 - - 356.43 356.43
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13218 - - 132 18 13218
Other Bank Balances 154.68 - - 154 63 154 68
Total 654.03 . - 654.03 654.03

d) Quantitative Disclosures Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy for Liabilities As At March 31, 2049:

As At Quoted Significant Significant Tolal
March 31, 2020 prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) (Level J)
Financial Liabillties Measured at Amortised
Trade payables 385.28 - - 385.28 385.28
Total 385.28 - . 385.28 385.28

Management has assessed thal trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payablas. Secunty Deposits
and Interesl accrued on FOR approximate their carrying amounts Jargely due to the short-term malurities of these instruments.

[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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Note 32; Financial risk management objectives and pollcies

The Company's principal financial liabities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial hapites s o
finance the Company's operations and lo provide guarantees to support its operations.

The Company’s principal financial assets includes securily deposits, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with bank,
interest accrued in deposits, receivables from related and other paries and interest accrued thareon.

The Company 15 exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's senior level management of these nsks and is
supported by Treasury depariment that advises on the appropriate financial risk governance framework.

A. Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market
prices. Markel risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency fisk and olher price risk, such as equity pnce risk and
commodily nisk. Financial instruments affecled by market risk borrowings, short term deposits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the foliowing sections relate to the position as al March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2018

i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate nsk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will lucluate because of changes in markel

it} Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value ar fulure cash flows of an exposure will flucluate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in {oreign exchange rales retales primarily fo the Company's
operaling acvities (when revenue or expense is denominaled in 2 foreign currency)

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure Currency in Lakh

31 March 2020 uspb EUR GBP
Trade payables and olher financial liabilities - 0.56 .
Net exposure of recognised financial liabilities - 0.56 -
Trade receivables - - -
Net exposure of recognised flnancial assets - 0.56 -

31 March 2019
Trade payables and other financial liabilties 0.01 0.46 0.00
Net exposure of recognised financlal liabilities 0.01 0.46 0.00

Trade receivables - - -
Net exposure of recognised llnancial assets 0.01 0.46 0.00

Senslitivity analysts

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign currencles against INR ai the end of the year, would have affected the
measurement of financial asset and financial liabilily denominated in a foreign currency and affected equily and profit or loss by the
amount shown below This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular inlerest rates, remain constant

Profitf {Loss} " in lakh

31 Mareh 2020 Strengthening Weakening
USD (5% movement) - -
EUR (5% movement) {2.33) 233

GBP (5% movement} - .

31 March 2019

USD (5% movemeant) (0.02) 0.02
EUR (5% movement) {1.79} 179
GBP (5% movement) - .
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8. Credit risk

Credit nsk is the nsk that counterparty will nol meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer coniract, leading 1o a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables} and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transaclions and other financial instruments

-

i} Trade recelvables

Cuslomer credit risk 1s managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and contiol relating lo

customer credit nsk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Quistanding customer
receivables are regulariy monitored

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Particulars Neither pastdue Lessthan 30 30toS0 90fo 180 More than Total

nor impaired days days days 180 days
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2020 - 34.26 126.14 48.05 30.41 238.86
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2019 - 37.07 175.48 42.95 100.94 356.43

li) Financlal instruments and cash

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial inslitutions Is managed by the Company's treasury depariment in accordance wiih
the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit mits assigned lo
each countarpanty. Counterpanty credd limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis. and may he
updaled throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s finance commiliee. The limils are sel to minimse {he concentration
of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss thraugh counlerparty’s potential failure to make payments.

C. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without
incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity 1o meel its cash and collateral requirements. The

Company closely monitors ils liquidily pesition and deploys a robust cash management system |t maintains adequale sources of
financing including foans from banks at an opimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

As at March 31, 2020 On demand Less than 3 Jwo12 105 > 5 years Total
months months years

Trade payables - 203.89 - - - 203.89

Lease liabilities - 7.16 23.13 2237 - 52.65

Creditors for capital expenditure - 0.27 - - - 027

Total - 211.32 23.13 22.37 . 256.81

As at March 31, 2019 On demand Less than 3 3to12 1te b > 5 years Total
months months years

Trade payables - 385.28 - - . 38528

Total - 385,28 - - . 385.28
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Note 33 : Income Tax Expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 are

Far the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current lax - -
Deferred tax (11.40) 3.46
Income tax adjustment for earlier years 1.84 08s
Total Income 1ax expensel{income) reported In the statement of profit or loss {9.55}) 4.35

0OC] section

Deferred tax related to tems recognised in OC! during the year:
For the year ended For the year cnded

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Net toss/{gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.G8 ¢ 3z
0.68 0.37

Recongcilialtion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March
31, 2018,

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Accounting profit before income tax {131.40) 30 46
Al India's statutory incoms tax rale of 26% (March 31, 2019 ; 26%) {34.16) 7.92
Adjustment in respect of current income tax for previous year 1.84 0.89
Tax Effect of Expenses nol deductable for tax purposes (0.13) 003
Other adjusiments including tax rate chage (073) 338
Tax Effect of carry forward/ set off from brought forward fosses 23.63 {7 87)
At the income tax rate of 26% (March 31, 2019 : 26%) (9.55) 4.35
Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profil and loss (9.55) 435

Variance

The Company offsets lax assels and liabilities if and only If it has a legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets and current
lax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred Lax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same lax authonty

Company has done accounting for taxes in accordance with IND AS 12. Probablity lo realise the deferred tax assets on carry forvard
losses in the near future is nol established, henee DTA on carried forward losses has nol been created by the Company
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Note 34 ; Earning Per Share (EPS) For the year endeccor the year endec
March 31, 2020  March 31, 201%

Basic/ Diluted Earning Per Share

Profit attributable to Equily Sharehalders (A) (121.84) 26 11
Weighted average equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year (8) 68.10 68 10
Earning per share - Basic/Diluted {A/B) {1.79) 0.38

Mate 35 : Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

The Company adopled IndAS116 “Leases” and applied the standard fo all lease conlracts exisling on Apnl1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective melhod and has taken the cumulative adjustment lo retained earnings, on the date of inilial application,

On transition,the adoplion of the new standard with modifled retrospective method, resulted in recognition of ‘Righ tof Use'
asset of ¥ 108.83 Lakh and a lease liabuiity of T 108.83 Lakh as on 01.04.2019. The cumulative effact of applying the standard
amounting 10 ¥ 3.58 Lakh was debited to retained earnings {net of taxes). Application of Ind AS116 will result in an increase in
cash inflows from operating actities and an increase in cash outflows from financing aclvities on account of lease

Dunng the year, company has taken three premises on operating leases. One lease 15 for five years lease term commancing
from 15.06 2017 and another lease 1s for three year lease term commencing from 0107 2018 third lease teing short tem
tease and lease lerm has compleled during the current year

Following is movement in lease liabilies during the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars For Year ended March 31,2020
Balance as at April 01, 2018 7922
Additions .
Finance cost acrued during the year 673
Payment of Lease Liahllities 33.30
Balance as at March 31, 2020 52,65
Detail of contractual maturilies of lease liabillties as as following:

Particulars For Year ended March 31,2020
Less Than One Year 3028
One to Five Years 2237
More than five years .
Total 52.65

The Company does not face a significant hiquidily risk with regard to ils lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to
meet the obligatons related to lease fiabilities as and when they fali due.

Note 36 : Related Party Disclosures
a} Name of the Relaled Parties and Description of Relationship:

Ulimate Holding company of Fabory Maslers in Fasteners Group B.V |Grainger International Holdings B V.

Joint Venturer Sterling Tools Lid
Mfs. Borstlap Master (Fasteners Group)
Fabory Masiers in Fastoners Group BV

Key Management Personnel Mr.Johan Emiel Dewandeleer - Direclor
Mr. Ronald Ernesl Baarslag - Director
Mr. Anil Aggarwal - Direclor

Mr. Alul Aggarwal — Director

Mr. Dhaneshwar- Company Secrefary
{Resignation 31.05 2019)

Ms Pnyanka Daga - Company Secretary
{Appointment 10.12.2019, Resignation 21.01 2020)

Enlerprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives [Sterling Technologies Private Limit
Sterling Automobiles Prvale Limits
Fabory Netherlands

Fabory USA Grand Rapids

Fabory Shanghai




i 4]

Sterling Fabory India Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts in T in lakh, except otherwise specified)

b} Transactions during the year with related party

Particulars Jolnt VenturorsKey Management| Enterprises
Personnel owned or
significantly
influenced by
KMP or their
relatlves
Purchase of Properly, Plant & Equipment - - 1366
Sale of Matenal - - 49 35
(95.01) - {-)
Purchase of Material 128.84 - 96.25
(245.46) - (93.20)
Expenses Paid - - 013
{-} - (0.49)
Rent paid - - 1800
-) - (19.50
Remuneration - 0.44 -
{=) {1.29) -
Reimbursable Expenses - - 014
=) - .

*Flgures i brackels represents corresponding amounts of previous years,

c) Dotails of Transactions With Related Parties:

Enterprise over which KMP can exerclse significant influence

Share Capital
Sterling Tools Limited
Mis. Borstlap Master (Fasteners Group}

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Sterling Automaobile Pvt. Ltd.

Sale of Material
Sterling Tools Ltd

Purchase of Material

Sterling Tools Ltd {including Goods in Transit)
Fabory Nethertands{including Goads in lransit)
Fabory Shangha

Expenses pald
Sterling Automobtle Pvt Lid.- Vehwete Repairs

Rent paid
Sterling Technologies Put. Lid.

Relmbursable Expenses Incurred by others
Sterhng Automomile Pvt. Lid.

KMP- Remuneoration
Salary and Perquisites *
- Mr. Dhanaswar Company Secrelary
- Ms. Payanka Daga :Company Secrelary

For the year endec¢or the year ende¢

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

13.66

49.35

128.84
g5.91
0.35

0.13

18.00

0.14

0.22
022

95.01

245 46
92 67
054

049

19 60

129
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Reclevables/{Payables) 'Net Balances' as at March 31, 2020

Sterling Toals Lid (43.56) (89.61)
Fabory Netherlands {45.31) {34.58)
Notes:

-All the tr_ansaclion with the related parties are made on terms equivalent to thase that prevail in arm's length transactions.
0utsie_1ndmg balances at lhe year-end are unsecured and interest free and setllement occurs in cash within 12 month of
reporting date, There have been ne guarantees provided or received for any related party payablesfreceivables. No expenses

has been recognized in the current year in respect of bad or doubtful debtsfadvances and further no specific provision for
doubtful debts/advances has been made in respect of outstanding balances.

* Daes not include expense in respect of graluity and compensated absences as the same is determined on an aciuarial
basis for the company as a whole. :

For the year endecor the year endec

Note 37 : Contingent Liability March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Contingent Liability

C - Form liability - 0.36
Note 38 : Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

a) Foreign currency exposura not hedged by derivalive instruments or otherwise:-

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Foreign currency exposure not hedged (Buy) | Foreign Currency] T Amountin Foreign T Amount in
amt in Lakh Lakh Currency Lakh
amt in Lakh
Euro 0.56 46.59 0.46 3575
GBP - - 0.00 0.02
Us Dallar - - 0.01 0.45

Note 39 : Segment Information

1. In ling with the pravision of Ind AS 108- Operating Segments and on the basis of review of operations being done by the
board of directors of the Company {which has been idenlified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) who evaluates
the company's performance, allocates resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the company

as a single unit), the operations of the Company falls under dealing In sales of fasteners, which is considered 10 be the only
repariable segment.

2.Major Custoemers: Revenue from One customers of the Company's trading business is more than 10 percent of the
Comnany's lotal revenue. Revenue from 3 major customers of the Company's trading business Is ¥ 382.73 lakhs (March 31,

Note 40 : The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required
by the transfer pricing regulation under Seclions 92-92F of the Income-lax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such
information and documentation 1o be contemporanaous in nature, the Company continuously updates ils documentalion for
the international fransactions enlered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year.

Note 43 : In view of the management, the current assels, loans and advances have a value on realization in lhe ordinary
course of business at leas! equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020

Note 44: The outbreak of COVID-19 in India does not have or [kely to have a significant adverse impact on the Company.
The management does not see any risks in the Company's ability lo conlinua as a going concern and meeling its iabilities as
and when they fall due for payment.
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HNote 45 : The closing balances of cerlain trade receivables and trade payables are subject to confirmalion.

Note 46 : Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakh except otherwise stated,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Fabory India Private Limited

(Anil Aggarwal) (Atul Adgarwal)
Direglor irector
DIN 00027214 DIN No. 0012582¢
N

Place of Signature. Fora shodoaid
Pated: 19 JUN 2000




